GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

|

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
ENTERTAINMENT CONVENTION, SHOW & §PDRTS FACILITIES

Board of Directors
Friday, December 3, 2010
Immediately Following
CAA Operations Committee Meeting
Kent County Commission Chambers

300 Monroe, NW — Grand Rapids, MI

AGENDA

I. Call to Order

IL. Approve November 5, 2010, Meeting Minutes

III. Committee Reports

A. Operations Committee
i. CVB Report
B. Finance Committee
i. SMG October 2010 Financial Statements -

DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®
ii. CAA October 2010 Financial Statements

IV.  Booking Policy Task Force Update
V. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars
V1.  Public Comment

VII. Adjournment

Next Meeting Date: Friday, January 7, 2011, immediately following the
CAA Finance Committee meeting

Merry Christmas & Happy New Year!

Action

Information

Information

Action

Action

Information

Information



Item II

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Friday, November 5, 2010

L. Call to Order

Steve Heacock, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 8:20 a.m. Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs
recorded the meeting minutes.

Attendance

Members Present: Steve Heacock, Chair

Lew Chamberlin
George Heartwell
Birgit Klohs

Joe Tomaselli
Floyd Wilson, Jr.

Members Absent: Gary Mclnerney

Staff/Others: Scott Atchison Michigan Flashcard
David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Jim Day Kent County
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
Brian Dykema Interested Citizen
Meg Goebel Broadway Grand Rapids
Scott Gorsline DP Fox
Tim Gortsema Grand Rapids Griffins
George Helmstead CVB
Peter Kjome Grand Rapids Symphony
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
Mike Lloyd Broadway Grand Rapids
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Larry Robsen Grand Rapids Symphony
Eddie Tadlock SMG
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Jim Watt SMG
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright

Presentation by Grand Rapids Griffins

Tim Gortsema, Senior Vice President of Business Operations, presented a report on the Grand Rapids
Griffins, the primary tenant of the Van Andel Arena®. The Griffins are 15 years old this year with 10
years in the American Hockey League. Since the Griffins' inception in 1996, 111 different players - 16
goalies and 95 skaters - have gone on to play at least one game in the National Hockey League.

Some of the more accomplished members of the Griffins' alumni class include 13 Stanley Cup
champions. A Griffins alumnus has had his name engraved on the Stanley Cup each of the last three
years (2008-2010) and five times in the last six seasons. Fifteen former Griffins were on the playoff



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
November 5, 2010 -2

roster of the 2008 Stanley Cup champion Detroit Red Wings, nine of whom now have their names
engraved on the Cup. Forty-two Griffins alumni logged ice time with 18 different NHL teams during the
2009-10 regular season. At season's end, Chicago's Tomas Kopecky became the first former Griffin to
win his second Stanley Cup.

All 30 NHL teams have had a former Griffin play for them at some point. 53 players have made their
NHL debuts after first playing for the Griffins, including 32 who made their debut during the same season
they played in Grand Rapids.

Last year, the Griffins won the fan experience award. During the 2008/2009 season, the Griffins won
awards for most attendance and community service. The Griffins established a youth foundation in 1995
that allows 300+ underserved children to participate in skating and hockey activities.

This year, hockey nights are branded individually to drive attendance: Winning Wednesday; dollar beer
dollar dogs on Friday; Saturday night giveaways; and Sunday is Fun day. While group sales are
increasing, full season ticket sales present a strong challenge due to time and money. Individual sales are
driven by concessions and continue to be solid because of dollar beer dollar dog night.

Chair Heacock stated that the CAA appreciates its partnership with the Griffins.

II1. Minutes of Prior Meeting

Motion: Mr. Heartwell, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve the Minutes of the October 1, 2010
meetings of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority. The motion carried
unanimously.

Iv. Committee Reports

a. Operations Committee

Mr. Chamberlin stated that the Committee’s next meeting is Friday, December 3.

Mr. Helmstead presented the CVB report. Restaurant week is November 4-November 13. September and
October were the first back-to-back $10 million revenue months in three years. From the recent the
Rejuvenate convention (competitor of RCMA), CVB staff booked 65 appointments and obtained 15
leads. The Connect hobby convention resulted in 35 appointments and 4 leads.

b. Finance Committee.

Ms. Klohs stated that she would make one motion to cover all four items, since they were discussed at
length during the Finance Committee meeting held beforehand.

i. SMG Financial Statements for DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena® for the
periods ended September 30, 2010.

ii. CAA Financial Statements for the period ended September 30, 2010.

iii. Special Purpose Financial Statements as of and for the Years Ended June 30,
2010 and 2009.

iv. Amendment to FY 2011 Capital Budget.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to accept the Finance Committee action items.
The motion carried unanimously.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
November 5, 2010 -3

V. Booking Policy Recommendation

This past January, Mr. MacKeigan requested feedback from the frequent users on the present booking
policy. All expressed an interest in maintaining the current policy with the exception of the Broadway
Grand Rapids, which voiced a desire to receive more favorable dates. The current policy has the
Broadway working with the other arts tenants and in a fourth priority positions. The policy provides a
higher priority to the other arts tenants primarily due to the fact that the talent is mostly local and the
majority of the revenue for the ballet, opera, and symphony stays in west Michigan, while Broadway
shows are paid a fee with the overage retained by Broadway. Mr. MacKeigan recommended that no
change be made to the booking policy at this time. Mr. MacKeigan also recommended another review
next year, if necessary. SMG will insert itself into the date negotiations for the next scheduled season
(2012/13). This will provide SMG first-hand involvement in the scheduling practices for a better position
to assess the policy’s strengths and weaknesses.

Meg Goebel, Board Chair, and Mike Lloyd, Executive Director, of Broadway Grand Rapids addressed the
CAA Board for support of its position to change the booking policy to be on equal status with the other
arts tenants. Mr. Lloyd declared that Broadway’s second-tier status makes it difficult to book top-level
shows because it has access to lousy dates once the other arts tenants have filled their calendars.
Broadway’s partnership with the MSU Wharton Center has given it leverage to secure popular shows,
such as Legally Blond. MSU will also bring additional educational programs to Grand Rapids in
conjunction with its performing arts programs.

Larry Robsen, Board Chair, and Peter Kjome, Executive Director, of the Grand Rapids Symphony
addressed the CAA Board in support of maintaining the current booking policy. The current booking
policy is in line with the intentions of those who built DeVos Performance Hall by giving first priority to
local artists. The policy realizes the vision of those who created DeVos Hall 30 years ago. The policy
helps local arts groups create and maintain jobs. Changes would create uncertainty regarding income and
scheduling. The policy is flexible and the arts groups already work with Broadway to accommodate its
needs.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Wilson, moved to establish a task force, appointed by the Board
Chair, to review the booking policy issues and develop a solution with a recommendation to be presented
to the CAA Board at its February 4, 2011, meeting.

Discussion followed. Mr. Heartwell concurred that there were not enough good dates for everybody and
there is no silver-bullet solution. He is delighted with the success of Mike Lloyd and Broadway, which
was at a precipice. Broadway is acquiring diverse offerings that are important to the community in
attracting and retaining young people. Mr. Heartwell asked the arts tenants to be flexible and stated that
inserting SMG at the table is very important.

Mr. Tomaselli stated that a lot has changed in the 20 years since the CAA inherited the original booking
policy. It’s a great opportunity to review the policy and come up with recommendations. As part of the
review, the task force should look at how the rehearsal hall is being used to free up dates. Ms. Klohs
added that the CAA Board has a fiduciary responsibility to understand how this works. Conventions and
other entertained need to be figured in. Chair Heacock agreed that a task force was worth the effort and
would like the work completed within 6-8 weeks. Mr. Chamberlin inquired whether the task force would
examine some sort of criteria. Chair Heacock responded that criteria will be established, prioritized, and
weighted. Discussion concluded.

The motion carried unanimously.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
November 5, 2010 -4

VI Parking Operation and Maintenance Agreement

This item was addressed at the Finance Committee held beforehand.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to accept the Parking Operation and
Maintenance Agreement. The motion carried unanimously.

VIL SMG Report and Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan presented a summary of the upcoming events that will be held at DeVos Place® and the
Van Andel Arena®.

Mr. MacKeigan stated that the SMG Management Agreement and SMG Food and Beverage Agreement
expire June 30, 2011. There is a deadline of December 31, 2010 for notice to either party not to extend
the agreements. SMG legal counsel has provided preliminary documents. Attorney Wendt and Bob
White have reviewed the documents and identified issues that need to be addressed. Mr. MacKeigan
requested that Chair Heacock appoint a Board member to act as liaison in the process, which he expects
should be completed by January.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Wilson, moved to authorize the Board Chair to extend the contract
deadlines, if necessary. The motion carried unanimously.

VIII. Public Comment

Scott Atchison of Michigan Flashcard, Grand Rapids, Michigan, attended the meeting to request written
support for a Grand Rapids direction and information booth,

IX. Next Meeting Date

The date for next CAA Board meeting is Friday, December 3, 2010, in the Kent County Commission
Chambers, Kent County Administration Building, 300 Monroe Avenue, NW, immediately following the
Operations Committee meeting.

X. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 9:55 a.m.

Birgit M. Klohs, Recording Secretary



Item II1.B.i.

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2010

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS
EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE

SALES

OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

INCENTIVE FEE

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER

OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments;

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
159 329 488 494 (6)
99,068 413,680 512,748 531,500 (18,752)
601,380 1,776,575 2,377,955 2,409,380 (31,425)
635,794 1,277,298 1,913,092 1,907,266 5,826
1,237,174 3,053,873 4,291,047 4,316,646 (25,599)
45,539 139,355 184,894 190,950 (6,056)
1,282,713 3,193,228 4,475,941 4,507,596 (31,655)
51,444 118,168 169,612 169,612 -
72,083 149,852 221,935 221,935 -
13,677 89,992 103,669 103,669 -
418,035 1,067,490 1,485,525 1,485,525 .
282,120 584,556 866,676 866,676 -
27,543 51,668 79,211 79,211 -
105,032 250,632 355,664 355,664 -
617,842 1,318,405 1,936,247 1,936,247 -
1,587,777 3,630,763 5,218,539 5,218,539 -
(305,064) (437,535) (742,598) (710,943) (31,655)
- 0 -
(305,064) (437,535) (742,598) (710,943) (31,655)

October performed well for DeVos Place as ancillary income
continues to come in at budgeted numbers and showing an increase
over prior year. October also included the season starts for both

the Symphony and Ballet in the Performance Hall.




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2010

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date
as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH October October October

Actual Budget FY 2010
Number of Events 71 71 69
Attendance 46,320 58,300 48,756
Direct Event Income $283,926 $258,552 $287,902
Ancillary Income 283,501 264,660 267,017
Other Income 18,045 14,725 11,092
Indirect Expenses (411,678) (434,879) (439,071)
Net Income $173,794 $103,058 $126,940
YTD YTD 2011 YTD 2011 YTD 2010

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 159 152 162
Attendance 99,068 124,450 103,469
Direct Event Income $601,380 $566,649 $657,427
Ancillary Income 635,794 627,139 521,589
Other Income 45,539 41,047 32,211
Indirect Expenses (1,587,777) (1,739,516) (1,545,506)
Net Income ($305,064) ($504,681) ($334,279)
EVENT INCOME

Event income came in a little ahead of budgeted levels with most of the overage
coming from conventions hosted during the month that used more of the facility
than original anticipated.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in ahead of budget for the month and continues to show growth
over prior fiscal year.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in at expected levels for the month.




Event Income

Direct Event Income
Rental income
Service Revenue
Service Expenses

Total Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
F&B Concession
F&B Catering
Novelly Sales
Booth Cleaning
Telephone/Long Distance
Electrical Services
Audio Visual
Internet Services
Equipment Rental

Total Ancillary Income
Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event)

Total Other Event Income

Total Event Income

Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements
Other Income

Total Other Operating Income

Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Labor Allocations to Events

Net Salaries and Benefits

Contracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations

Repair and Maintenance
Operational Supplies
Insurance

Utilities

SMG Management Fees

Total Operating Expenses

Net Income(Loss) From Operations

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Adjusted Net Income(Loss)

DeVos Place

Income Statement

For the Four Months Ending October 31, 2010

Current Month  Current Month Current Month  Yearto Date  Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year

$319,761 $269,848 $49,913 $297,033 $684,024 $599,882 $84,142 $658,833
208,014 210,402 (2,388) 310,674 484,337 514,408 (30,069) 594,364
(243,849) (221,698) (22,151) (319,805) (566,981) (547,639) (19,342) (595,770)
283,926 258,552 25,374 287,902 601,380 566,649 34,731 657,427
10,913 8,440 2,473 12,853 28,104 19,385 8,719 24,444
84,406 90,970 (6,564) 68,207 226,894 215,665 11,229 159,293
0 600 (600) 590 502 2,222 (1,720) 4,238
37,611 26,230 11,381 33,619 56,804 60,456 (3,652) 46,705
0 2,268 (2,268) 338 225 5,292 (5,087) 800
92,968 60,619 32,349 94,212 132,548 147,466 (14,918) 125,321
29,437 46,330 (16,893) 29,420 110,581 107,056 3,625 99,799
8,797 6,489 2,308 3,033 29,751 14,241 15,510 13,819
19,369 22,714 (3,345) 24,745 50,385 65,356 (4,971) 47,070
283,501 264,660 18,841 267,017 635,794 627,139 8,655 521,589
8,487 9,892 (1,405) 9,150 27,867 21,715 6,152 23,181
8,487 9,892 (1,405) 9,150 27,867 21,715 6,152 23,181
575,914 533,104 42,810 564,069 1,265,041 1,215,503 49,538 1,202,197
1,802 2,000 (198) 1,733 7,208 8,000 (792) 6,933
7,756 2,833 4,923 209 10,464 11,332 (868) 2,097
9,558 4,833 4,725 1,942 17,672 19,332 (1,660) 9,030
585,472 537,937 47,635 566,011 1,282,713 1,234,835 47,878 1,211,227
254,951 225,288 29,663 301,019 817,344 901,152 (83,808) 860,664
77,667 58,848 18,819 85,863 213,152 235,392 (22,240) 218,972
(169,641) (122,456) (47,185) (228,224) (430,371) (489,824) 59,453 (490,972)
162,977 161,680 1,297 158,658 600,125 646,720 (46,595) 588,664
21,923 21,200 723 27,046 98,287 84,800 13,487 99,537
24,422 28,058 (3,636) 35,751 83,450 112,232 (28,782) 91,834
2,865 10,312 (7.447) 7,359 47,992 41,248 6,744 40,979
38,518 41,941 (3,423) 54,544 131,429 167,764 (36,335) 170,002
18,924 21,500 (2,576) 27,058 55,609 86,000 (30,391) 74,176
16,772 17,465 (693) 18,099 67,092 69,860 (2,768) 56,191
111,909 119,500 (7,591) 97,333 450,321 478,000 (27,679) 371,232
13,368 13,223 145 13,223 53,472 52,892 580 52,891
411,678 434,879 (23,201) 439,071 1,587,777 1,739,516 (151,739) 1,545,506
173,794 103,058 70,736 126,940 (305,064) (504,681) 199,617 (334,279)
173,794 103,058 70,736 126,940 (305,064) (504,681) 199,617 (334,279)

5



SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For the Three Months Ended October 31, 2010

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 49 49 41,850 61,250 680,352 696,976
Consumer/Gated Shows 4 4 2,940 6,000 27,801 38,616
Devos Performance Hall 32 25 24,124 29,500 179,850 141,270
Banquets 13 13 6,703 8,450 94,088 92,794
Meetings 41 41 11,146 10,250 194,393 120,909
Other 20 20 12,305 9,000 88,557 124,940
GRAND TOTALS 159 152 99,068 124,450 1,265,041 1,215,505
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 30.82% 32.24% 42.24% 49.22% 53.78% 57.34%
Consumer/Gated Shows 2.52% 2.63% 2.97% 4.82% 2.20% 3.18%
Devos Performance Hall 20.13% 16.45% 24.35% 23.70% 14.22% 11.62%
Ballroom Exclusive 8.18% 8.55% 6.77% 6.79% 7.44% 7.63%
Meetings 25.79% 26.97% 11.25% 8.24% 15.37% 9.95%

Other 12.58% 13.16% 12.42% 7.23% 7.00% 10.28%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities

Equity

Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

DeVos Place
Balance Sheet
As of October 31, 2010

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

846,886
676,701
31,256
$1,554,843
$1,554,843
79,789
233,835
26,915
535,069
$875,608
424,569
559,729
(305,064)
$679,235
$1,554,843




SMG - DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of October 31, 2010

Current - Under 30 Days

Food & Beverage 89,767
Ticketing -
Merchandise 247
Decorating 37,611
Audio/Visual 29,436
Van Andel Arena (94,847)
Operating 445,927
Over 30 Days 31,746
Over 60 Days 121,680
Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions 5,736
Paragon Leather 2,110
Saigon Entertainment 5,002
Grinder Promotions 2,286

Total Accounts Receivable 676,701



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2010
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,049,086 (742,598) 306,488 916,360
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,049,086 (742,598) (393,512) 216,360

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Base Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 317,343
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,975,642 4,475,941 9,451,583 9,777,929
Benchmark Revenue 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,000,000 8,900,000
Revenue Excess 175,642 275,941 451,583 877,929
Incentive Fee ** - - - 238,379
Total SMG Management Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 555,722

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

GRAND RAPIDS

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2010

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item IIL.B.1.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK ADMIN
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

LESS INCENTIVE FEE

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE

Comments:

October kicked off the new Griffins season with numbers comparable

Y10 ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE
19 88 107 111 @)
90,985 476,639 567,624 591,650 (24,026)
224776 1,090,258 1,315,034 1,460,958 (145,924)
164,425 1,031,561 1,195,986 1,230,438 (34,452)
389,201 2,121,819 2,511,020 2,691,396 (180,376)
610,903 1,853,719 2464622 2,444,775 19,847
1,000,104 3,975,538 4975642 5,136,171 (160,529)
52,671 138,442 191,113 191,113 -
66,944 159,959 226,903 226,903 .
90,869 198,360 289,229 289,229 -
527,488  1,080467 1,607,955 1,607,955 -
28,033 105,597 133,630 133,630 -
23,755 63,521 87,276 87,276 -
4,408 19,548 23,956 23,956 -
431,352 935,142 1,366,494 1,366,494 -
1225519 2,701,036 3,926,556 3,926,556 -
(225,415) 1,274,502 1,049,086 1,209,615 (160,529)
0 - -
(225,415) 1,274,502 1,049,086 1,209,615 (160,529)

to prior year. Overall the Arena fell short of budget as ticket sales

for the Detroit Pistons and TNA Wrestling events fell below budgeted

expectations.

General Manager




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS

FOR MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2010

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date

as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH October October October

Actual Budget FY 2010
Number of Events 6 6 10
Attendance 29,561 36,000 50,649
Direct Event Income $33,243 $56,188 $128,790
Ancillary Income 67,038 91,999 122,583
Other Income 151,682 184,607 212,562
Indirect Expenses (324,158) (327,214) (288,422)
Net Income ($72,195) $5,580 $175,513
YTD YTD 2011 YTD 2011 YTD 2010

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 19 20 15
Attendance 90,985 108,500 110,097
Direct Event Income $224,776 $311,069 $286,757
Ancillary Income 164,425 214,183 269,309
Other Income 610,903 738,310 792,447
Indirect Expenses (1,225,519) (1,308,856) (1,103,887)
Net Income ($225,415) ($45,294) $244,626

EVENT INCOME

Event income fell below budget due to lower than anticipated ticket sales for Pistons and Wrestling.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income fell below expecations due to lower ticket sales.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in at expected levels for the month.




Van Andel Arena
Income Statement

For the Four Months Ending October 31, 2010

Current Month Current Month Current Month  Year to Date  Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
Event iIncome
Direct Event Income
Rental Income $79,112 $115,800 (36,688) $176,052 $326,091 $413,011 (86,920) $365,947
Service Revenue 47,088 59,760 (12,672) 154,866 502,115 469,288 32,827 334,661
Service Expenses (92,957) (119,372) 26,415 (202,128) (603,430) (571,230) (32,200) (413,851)
Total Direct Event Income 33,243 56,188 (22,945) 128,790 224,776 311,069 (86,293) 286,757
Ancillary Income
F&B Concession 58,932 76,010 (17,078) 97,741 145,174 180,692 (35,518) 217,856
F&B Catering 3,556 6,629 (3,073) 8,463 5,905 13,277 (7,372) 19,527
Novelty Sales 1,870 6,780 (4,910) 14,029 10,648 17,634 (6,986) 26,576
Audio Visual 0 0 0 0 18 0 18 0
Other Ancillary 2,680 2,580 100 5,350 2,680 2,580 100 5,350
Total Ancillary Income 67,038 91,999 (24,961) 125,583 164,425 214,183 (49,758) 269,309
Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event) 8,038 17,000 (8,962) 32,528 36,880 63,230 (26,350) 78,990
Total Other Event Income 8,038 17,000 (8,962) 32,528 36,880 63,230 (26,350) 78,990
Total Event Income 108,319 165,187 (56,868) 286,901 426,081 588,482 (162,401) 635,056
Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements 95,988 108,607 (12,619) 131,046 367,078 439,080 (72,002) 480,394
Advertising 44,000 52,083 (8,083) 44,000 190,724 208,332 (17,608) 212,534
Other Income 3,656 6,917 (3,261) 4,988 16,221 27,668 (11,447) 20,529
Total Other Operating Income 143,644 167,607 (23,963) 180,034 574,023 676,080 (101,057) 713,457
Adjusted Gross Income 251,963 332,794 (80,831) 466,935 1,000,104 1,263,562 (263,458) 1,348,513
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages 149,598 160,183 (10,585) 152,649 606,736 640,732 (33,996) 533,069
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 36,481 42,846 (6,365) 40,869 129,658 171,384 (41,726) 133,365
Labor Allocations to Events (24,986) (72,446) 47,460 (65,448) (181,483) (289,784) 108,301 (192,449)
Net Salaries and Benefits 161,093 130,583 30,510 128,070 554,911 522,332 32,579 473,985
Contracted Services 19,771 21,300 (1,529) 19,801 81,499 85,200 (3,701) 77,023
General and Administrative 27,877 30,742 (2,865) 31,397 106,928 122,968 (16,040) 97,686
Operations 2,218 4,996 (2,778) 1,867 6,632 19,984 (13,352) 5,940
Repair and Maintenance 2,577 17,943 (15,366) 7,829 32,324 71,772 (39,448) 58,146
Operational Supplies 17,300 19,883 (2,583) 9,499 59,000 79,532 (20,532) 32,588
Insurance 11,033 11,394 (361) 11,703 44,131 45,576 (1,445) 30,502
Utilities 68,921 77,150 (8,229) 65,033 286,622 308,600 (21,978) 275,126
SMG Management Fees 13,368 13,223 145 13,223 53,472 52,892 580 52,891
Total Operating Expenses 324,158 327,214 (3,056) 288,422 1,225,519 1,308,856 (83,337) 1,103,887
Net Income(Loss) From Operations (72,195) 5,580 (77,775) 178,613 (225,415) (45,294) (180,121) 244,626
Other Non-Operating Expenses
Adjusted Net Income(Loss) {72,195) 5,580 (77,775) 178,513 (225,415) (45,294) (180,121) 244,626




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Event Summary
For the Four Months Ended October 31,2010

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games

Other

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

6 7 22,283 23,000 63,738 60,396

1 2 3,578 14,000 132,937 141,475

2 3 8,655 25,500 61,218 215,339

4 4 19,690 22,000 40,616 47,712

4 4 26,908 24,000 151,322 147,560

17 20 81,114 108,500 449,831 612,482
35.29% 35.00% 27.47% 21.20% 14.17% 9.86%
5.88% 10.00% 4.41% 12.90% 29.55% 23.10%
11.76% 15.00% 10.67% 23.50% 13.61% 35.16%
23.53% 20.00% 24.27% 20.28% 9.03% 7.79%
23.53% 20.00% 33.17% 22.12% 33.64% 24.09%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Van Andel Arena
Balance Sheet
As of October 31, 2010

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

4,150,518
1,257,363
184,890
$5,592,770
$5,692,770
28,944
278,862
1,832,307
2,833,262
$4,973,375
(450,000)
266,928
1,027,882
(225,414)
$619,395

$5,592,770




SMG - Van Andel Arena

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of October 31, 2010

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Permanent Advertising
DeVos Place
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable

149,489
63,363

684,816
94,847
106,203

125,645

33,000

1,257,363



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Plage Total FY 2010
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,049,086 (742,598) 306,488 916,360
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,049,086 (742,598) (393,512) 216,360

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Base Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 317,343
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,975,642 4,475,941 9,451,583 9,777,929
Benchmark Revenue 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,000,000 8,900,000
Revenue Excess 175,642 275,941 451,583 877,929
Incentive Fee ** - - - 238,379
Total SMG Management Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 555,722

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Item IIL.B.ii.

Memorandum
To: CAA Board
CAA Finance Committee
From: Robert J. White
Subject: October 31, 2010, Administrative Financial Statements
Date: November 22, 2010

The attached Balance Sheet and Income Statement have been reformatted to provide additional
information concerning the Convention/Arena Authority administrative account (unconsolidated) —
excluding facility manager financial activity (separately reported).

The Balance Sheet includes a two-year comparative financial position at September 30 for fiscal years
2010 and 2011. The Income Statement provides a line item comparison of accounts for the first three
months of the current fiscal year as compared to a similar period in the prior fiscal year. In addition, the
Income Statement provides a comparison of current year budget to prior year (FY 2010) actual. It will
allow the reader to compare first quarter expenditure trends with full-year budgetary allowances.

Items of interest in the two financial statements are explained as follows:

Balance Sheet (Unconsolidated):

e The cash and investments position decreased by $.71 million from October 31, 2009. Balance
decreased by $1.58 million from the June 30, 2010 position due to a quick start on several
capital improvement projects.

e Fund balance decreased by $.85 million over the October 31, 2009 level.

Three-Month Revenue/Expense:

e Parking revenues have increased by 14%. The July through October time period is a seasonally
slow period. Revenues in this time period (4 months = 33%) represent only 16% of total annual.

® Interest income was budgeted (2% rate est.) to increase by 35%, but has declined by 40%
(comparative time periods) from actual experience in the first four months of the prior fiscal
year. The County Investment Pool is currently paying 1% interest.

e Capital R/R/A spending is increased by 423% over prior year trend. Several major projects at the
Arena got off to a quick start.

e Other significant expenditure account variances are primarily due to timing issues.

Hopefully, these reports provide a more on-point analysis of administrative activities over the course of
the fiscal year. These reports will be updated on a monthly basis.



Apnys spasu [endes uu)-3uo| BUAIY UB JOJ 000 0SS JO 95UBMO|[B UB SIPN]OUf

VESOLYIT  §  TLO'96SHT $

TLO96S VT SSH611%T
£68¢ (0s6°s65°'1) ¢ 80I°LL1  $ (8€5°911°€) L199LY
9611 €16°86T°T LY9°8TO1 6811 979°0ST°L Y16 11€°€
g1 81¥°61 LET'6I 1'€S @ 000701 ¥L5°89
67 196°€T £06°TC 8y 000°4T £06°TT
00 - - 0°001 000°ST -
(zc6) 966 LETS 8¥91 000°0% 90161
(9'48) 697°01 18899 (6v) 000°1L 8L9VL
(on £56°S¢€ ¥67°9¢ 9bT P8Y°1€1 625°501
TeTy LT LYFL 8TLLT 0°€6L 005°801°y £90°09¥
00 000°ST 000°sT 00 000°6T 000°6T
00 - - 00 000°SL 000°SL
00 - - 0001 000001 -
9'¢ €01°sS SLI‘ES 90 005°¢€S SLI‘SS
00 - - 0'TLS 000°06 £6£°€1
8'TS 68761 T00°01 (+'0) 000°8 8YE‘s8
T L06°S1 ISI°LS (s°0¢) we6ll 1S9°1L1
SHeE $£5°609 6€1°ESY 9T 008°L61°C 6V 1p1°T
(€¢) £96°799 SSL661°1 1'6 880°VELY 1€5°88L°€
00 000°S 000°S ('89) 000°0€ L1T°66
(1°Ls) 991°cH 0£5°001 6¥¢ 000°SEY TTHTLE
oyl L6EP91 STTYYI L8 919786 6L6°€06
00 000°0SY $ 00006 § 68 TLY'989T  §  €16°999°T $
aguey) 1€/01 - /L 1€/01 - 1/L aduey) yespng en)oy
aBejuadlag 1107 Ad 0107 Ad a8ejuadtag 11027 Ad 0107 Ad

ABP-0L-183 X Jenuuy

0107 ‘1€ 1390320 Papu SYPIUOA INO Y} 10
Jduejeg puny ui saSuey) pue soINIpuIdxy ‘SINUIAIY JO JUIUIAIE)S

AI0OYINY BUAIY/UONUIAUO)) AJuno)) Judd|-spidey pueis)

@

SUORIPPY/IUSWISOR[ASY/I1BAY - V/I/d

)
‘SALON

pouriad jo pua ‘aduejeqg

poi1ad jo Sutumi3daq ‘adusjeyg
saInipuadxy J9AQ

SaNUIAY Jo (Kouandya() ssadxyg

saamipuadxy jerol
JyQysanddng -
soueInsuj -
UV JO JUSWIAIND0IJ -
aAnenIu] ANsIaAL( -
S991A19G [BUOISSJOIJ -
syyouagsadem -
uoneNsIuIWpy
s13fo01d fende) -
VAdrd rended
uolsssiwwo)) syodsg -
dAD -
uSredwre) -
Sunarep -
JUBWSSISSY Id -
Suideosspuer -
Ky9jeg ueLsapa ] -
Juswsdeuey Supyred -
saninn -
suoneradp
ssaanypuadxy

SINUIANY [8I0],
SNOUR[[SISIA
1S2I9)U]
Sunyreq
DNS WOy sigjsuel],
:SANUAAIY



Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Balance Sheet (Unconsolidated)

October 31, 2010
2009 2010
Assets
Cash - Operating $ 360,699 $ 58,879
Investments - Kent County 22,215,115 21,803,209
Capital Assets (Net) 659,549 788,841
Total Assets $ 23,235,363 $ 22,650,929

Liabilities & Fund Balance

Accounts Payable $ 291,463 $ 555,631

Fund Balance 22,943,900 22,095,298

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance $ 23,235,363 $ 22,650,929




VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY Item V
DATE EVENT EC [ MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Dec 1 Available
Thur, Dec 2 Available
Fri, Dec 3 Michael Bublé GC Arena 8:00 AM Floor mark
9:00 AM Pre-rig
10:00 AM Load-in
4:00 PM Sound check
7:00 PM Doors
8P-8:40P Naturally 7
8:40P-9P Intermission
9P-10:45P Michael Bublé
10:30 PM Load-out
Sat, Dec 4 Griffins vs San Antonio GC | ROD Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
12:30 PM Doors
1P-2P Pre-game youth hockey
2:30P-3:30P Pre-game youth hockey
4P-5P Pre-game youth hockey
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Banquet B 6P-8P Drawstring Backpack Giveaway
Crease Club 6P-9:30P Band performance
EnerSys, Inc. DG Banquet C 6P-9:30P Banquet
KDP Retirement Services East/West Nests 6P-9:30P Banquet
W. Mich Sports Banquet MOS Corner Office | 6P-9:30P Banquet
Dean Foods Suite 101A 6P-9:30P Banquet
Nutech Systems Suite 101B 6P-9:30P Banquet
Sun, Dec 5 Griffins vs San Antonio GC | KATHY | Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
3:00 PM Doors
4P-6:30P Hockey game
6:30P-6:50P Post-game skate
6:50P-7:10P Post-game autographs
Crease Club 3P-7:10P Band performance
Kraft Business Systems DG East Nest 3P-7:10P Banquet
Cambridge Partners MOS Corner Office | 3P-7:10P Banquet
Mon, Dec 6 Available
Tue, Dec 7 Ozzy Osbourne GC | CHRIS | Arena 7:30 PM Performance
Wed, Dec 8 Griffins vs Milwaukee GC | TODD | Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Boise Cascade Products DG Banquet B/C 6P-7P Banquet
Milwaukee Admirals Banquet D 9:30P-10:30P Post-game meal
Open Systems Technologies East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
IT Resource MOS Corner Office | 6P-9:30P Banquet
Armour Eckrich Meats Suite 101A 6P-9:30P Banquet
Thur, Dec 9 Available
Fri, Dec 10 Griffins vs Texas GC | TODD | Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Select Bank DG East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Informs West Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Jennifer Maxson Suite 101A 6P-9:30P Banquet
Brian Dixon Suite 120B 6P-9:30P Banquet
Sat, Dec 11 GVSU GC | ROD Arena 10:00 AM Commencement Ceremony




Sun, Dec 12 Griffins vs Texas GC | JIM Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
12:30 PM Doors
1P-2P Pre-game youth hockey
3:00 PM Doors
4P-6:30P Hockey game
6:30P-6:50P Post-game skate

DG Crease Club 3P-6:50P Band performance
Texas Banquet D 12P-3P Pre-game meal
Lakeview Family Chiro DG East Nest 3P-6:50P Banquet
J & H Oil Suite 101A 3P-6:50P Banquet

Mon, Dec 13 | Available

Tue, Dec 14 Available

Wed, Dec 15 | Griffins vs Houston GC | EDDIE | Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game

Northwood University DG Banquet B 6P-7P Banquet
John Hancock Mutual Fund Crease Club 6P-9:30P Banquet
Gerber Products DG East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Advance Auto Parts West Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
CUSO Development MOS Corner Office | 6P-9:30P Banquet

Thur, Dec 16 | Available

Fri, Dec 17 Griffins vs Peoria GC | LYNNE | Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game

Hickey Combs DG East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Zeeland Generating Station West Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Saranac Dental MOS Corner Office | 6P-9:30P Banquet
Tina Wray Suite 101A 6P-9:30P Banquet

Sat, Dec 18 Available

Sun, Dec 19 Available

Mon, Dec 20 | Available

Tue, Dec 21 Available

Wed, Dec 22 | Griffins vs Toronto GC | EDDIE | Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game

Courtyard by Marriott DG East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Keller & Almassian MOS Corner Office | 6P-9:30P Banquet
Thur, Dec 23 | Available
Fri, Dec 24 -
Closed — Holiday @ "
Sat, Dec 25 - ; -
Holiday ‘ "ﬁ ‘éf-

Sun, Dec 26 | Griffins vs Lake Erie GC | TODD | Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
3:00 PM Doors
4P-6:30P Hockey game
6:30P-6:50P Post-game skate
6:50P-7:10P Post-game autographs

March of Dimes DG West Nest 3P-7:10P Banquet
Nancy Gamby Suite 101A 3P-7:10P Banquet

Mon, Dec 27 | Available

Tue, Dec 28 Available

Wed, Dec 29 | Trans Siberian Orchestra GC | CHRIS | Arena 3:00 PM Performance
8:00 PM Performance

Thur, Dec 30

Available




Fri, Dec 31 Griffins vs Toronto GC | JIM Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
5:00 PM Doors
6P-8:30P Hockey game
8:30P-8.50P Post-game skate
DG Crease Club 5P-8:50P Band performance
West Side Beer East Nest 5P-8:50P Banquet
Griff’s Ice House West Nest 5P-8:50P Banquet
Delta Imports Suite 101A 5P-8:50P Banquet
Sat, Jan 1 Griffins vs Peoria GC Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-9:50P Post-game skate
9:50P-10:10P Post-game autographs
DG Banquet B 6P-8P UoM/MSU Hat Giveaway
Van Andel Flikkema Suite 101A 6P-10:10P Banquet
Sun, Jan 2 Available




01/6¢/11
d-v wooijjed = d-v 11vd
[[eH 22uRULIO}S] SOAST = Ad

4-V JOOIBAQ JoARY = 4-V OY

swooy Sunadn S0JUON = J-V NOW Baly AI9[[eD pueln = DO

I OV slleH MqIyxg = O-V HA H-V Suo0y Sunssy 0OHAQ V swooy Sunes|A A19[[eD pueln
Buneapy esRIWWo?) JaUUe BUNOA wdoo:01-wdoo:g \/ OOHAAQ JoAIY
jonbueg Jeis Buisiy SN wdoo:6-wdog:9 gv wooljjeg

uondsoay ssuue Bunop
19531 | 104 Janoabueyo suonelado

wdog:s
wdgp:e

asIn0ou0)) Aemwy

sdoys)iop [euoiesnp3 wdgpig-wdg|:Z 4'3'q’0'g'y
sjeuld Agjjes) pueis)

-|Wag SAPANOY Jauued Bunox
dnjas wdog:) 43 'aD MOOPaAQ Jany
Jauuip ojuy abueyd yoinb suonesado wdoo: | gv wooyeg
JaAQ abueyd MOouaAQ Jaaly weoe:| 1 NOOUAAQ Jany

uoniubooay
JueISaU0) Jauue Buno

..... =l

youn Jjauued Bunox wdgp:z1L-wdoo:z1 gV wooJjjeg
€ Punoy 193N uoissnasig weQg: | |L-wepe:ol 3'3'q'0'g
NOOUBAQ JaAlY
I PUNOY 193 uoissndsig weQg:0L-weQe6 4'3'q'o'g
SNOOUBAQ JaAlY
wooy Ajje | sabpnp Jauuey Buno wdoo:g-weQo:2 VW YOOUAAQ Janly
uoissag ajebajag WeGH: | | -Wepe:g a) woodjeg
uonesjsibay Jauueq Bunox weQg:0l-wepo:s HOOUAAQ JOnY
SWO0Y M3aIAIBJU| JauueH Buno Aeq IIv ao's'v
NoouanQ Aajes)
SJ99N uoIssnasIQ Y44 Aeq |Iv HO xoopanQ Aigjied)
Sjesy uoissnosig V44 Aeq v 43 oopsap Aisjleg
abeioig Leq vy abesols J IleH Hqiyx3
aapwwod juawdojanaq Aoljod Req v woolpieog aseyn
wooy ssaid Aeq v Jajua) ssauisng
eLRJBYDIElY 33Y0) wdoo:Z | -wepQ:L a9 Aq £qqo1 eiyooeg
uonesnsibay aebajag wdog:g-weQo:g 9SIN00U0YD Aemluy

00S1 *IONVANALLY "1S3 [BAlLY JU3IID wepo:9 MOHS TVNNNY 0107 TTVd NVIINEG WIVA IN 1230 'aam

—r———r—— 7

T

SE TN TS 2 e Tl e R e i T ot ) 3 e L
TVSYVIHTY d01-dL
AV NI JAON ds-v8 HdAd YIAOVIDLNAN / LITIVE 4D
13 SUYNOH ONIMIIA NdOE:S-INVOE L ATVMAIS LIGIHXT L4V NSAD
1anbueg s uapisald wdoo:0L-wdog:9 gy wooileg
uondeonay saoIALS JIaquIBy wdgl:g-wdgl:G 3sIN02U0Y) Aemwy
uonelisibay aebasjaq wdog:g-wdoo: | 8SIN0OU0YD Aemlly
youn
aapIwwo) awdojanag Adod wdog:i woospieog aseyn
saIwwWo?) awdojaaaq Ad1jod Aeq v wooipieoqg asey)
wooy ssald Aeq |Iv Jaua) ssauisng
dnjag uoissag ajebajag feq v Qo wooljeg
dmag nqIyx3 saoInag Jaquiaiy Buiwopy 3SIN0JU0Y) AeMLLy
dnjag jonbueg suapisaid wdpo:g-wepQ:8 gv wooljeg
{1eD uoinpold WweQo:6 gv wooljjeg

00§* _ ? We00.9 | L

010C — AT M ASIATY
HOVIEHSOAEC]



0l/6T/11

d-v wool[eg = -V 11vd
JleH 2oueuLIOMdd SOAd = Ad

sSwooy Su1lasjA] 20O = -V NOW

-V J00HBAQ 19ATY = 4-V O
BaIY A19][BD) pURID) = DN

[4 OV SlieH #quxd = O-V HA H-V Swooy Suiesl J00AQ = H-V O -V swooy Sunos A9j[eD pueid = 4-V O
Ul PEOT JOPUSA Ndoo:e Aqqo elyooeg
piing Jayoea|g yeid vy Wdo0:1L O wooy|jeg
u| peo] snjeseddy Wd00:1 o swooljjeg
H3IAOIONVHO SNOILYHIALO Wdystoe:2t Aigjien puels ‘Aqqon

SAVA € ¥3JAO 005°€-SLSVNWAD

0€8 SONVANILLY 1S3

o) |

= o

(Ajuo 2 |jey) ut peo Jopuaa
u| peo snjeseddy
sabuno sayoeoy/sabpnp

ul Peo| uondNPoId

u] peo siaydes|q YO Jo AuD

WNd00:¥ — INd00:21
V006
WNd00:L1 — WV00:8

<agL Wv00'8
£081 WY00:/

Nd6S:11-INV00-8

B14009S ‘qD wooljjeg
£400Q - 3 |leH hax3
gav swooljieg

200 MOYS swooljeg
— wooupieog aseyd

g wooyjjeg

gV swooJjeg

HdAd

SOLLSVNINAD SAIdVY ANVID

£ 03d Tdd

A4 dnids YTNOVIDLAN 19T71vE 4D
13 SYNOH ONIMTIA WJOE:S-INVOE L ATVMANS LIGIHX3 LYV NSAD
N0 peOT UoKONPOId wdoo:0L gy wooueg
uoyeuasald
- vsQ jenbueg |enuuy wdog:6-wdsy:9 gv wool|jeg
IO peoT] uebiyoipy Jo ase | wdpo:g-wdog:9 an Aq Aqqo eiyooag
uebiyol jo ase . wdg|:g-wdg|:g Q9 Aq Aqqo elyooeg
Buuayieo sjePyO paos)3 AmeN wdoo:g-wdoo:t H Yoopaa0 99
enbpuo 3% d wdpg:g-wdog:¢ v Ai9)je9 puess
uoissag ayebajeg wdoo:s-wdoo:z an wooljeg
uoissag Nd YV msmsmn_ wdp:g-wdpo:Z J-v As9|leo pueld
njos
Jauulp oyt abueyd yoinb suonesado wdog:) gv wooljjeg
|e100S weal) ag| wdoo:z-wdog: 1 A1gjjes) puels) Jsapn
SpIeMY J0}eonp3/iajowoldby
Spiemy SI01EJIUNWILIOYD)
uoayoun 39 d wdog: | -wegy:L L gv woolleg
uj peo uebiyoi Jo ase wdog:#-wdoo:Z1 a9 £q Aqqo1 eyodag
dnjes
youn| oju; abueyd 3oinb suoneiadp wepo:6 aog woosieg
uoIssag v YD siouue weQg:| |-WeQo:6 4-v Ai9jje9 puei
UOISSag [BJOUAS) JYVD Siaue wdoo:6-wepe:g gav Agjies pueis)
sdoysyHop JYVD sieued wdoo:g-wepge:g J-v Aig|je9 puerp
uoissag ajebajaq wepg: | L-wegy:g a) wooljjeg
uonessibay YYD sisuued weQQ:6-wepe:g | £qqo] gy Agjjles puero
1sepjealg oeduby weQg:g-weo: /2 gy wooljeg
sapwwo) Jjuawdojanaq Adljod Aeq v woolpleog aseyd
wooy ssald Req Iv 19)ua)) ssauisng
eUDJaYDIE|Y 230N AeQ Iiv-wepQ: . @0 £q £qqo eiyoosg
uonessibay ajebsjaq INV00:Z-Weps:9 2SIN02U0)) Aemwy
00$1 ‘IONVANITLLY 189 | vd [BALLY JU1ID wepQ:9 MOHS TYNNNV 010Z T1V4 NvIING WAV IN 704dd "SYNHL
A4 dnias INd6S:11-AV00:8 HdAd ADIOVIOLAN LITIVE ¥O
13 SYNOH ONIMIIA INdOES-INVOE:L NIVMANS LIGIHX3 LIV NSAD

0102 — ATHdM dISIATY
HIOVIFSOAECL




01/62/11

-V wooijjed = d-v 11vd -V JOO[1AQ JoAlY = 4-V OY
[IeH oueuLIOlIdd SOAd = AdQ Swo0Yy Su1l9dA 20IUOIAl = 0-V NOW BAIY AI9[[ED pURID = DO
¢ O-V slleH ¥qyxd = D-V HA H-V swooy Sunad j00[19AQ = H-VY O d-V swooy Sunss A1s|[en pueln = J-V D
AV MOHS/ JONVINIOLY3d INd6S:11-INV00:8 HdAQ APIOVAILAN LIATIVE 4D
13 SYNOH DNIMIIA d00:9-INV00:8 ATVMAIS LIGIHXET LIV NSAD
ERIELE] NOOUAAO
spremy WNd00:6 Jany - Kisjjeo puesn
suibag Jusaz — dn uuepp pawi | WNJSE:S swooljjeg
Ul yolepw ape|uy NdOoE'S swooljeg
dn uwuepp uado Nd00:S swooljjeg
spiemy WJoe'¥ 3OOUSAO
Jany — A1g)es) puelo
sujbag Juang — dn uuepp pawi] WdSOo:L swooljjeg
u| yosepy eyl WdO00:1L swooljjeg
dn uuepp uado INdOE:ZL swooijjeg
splemy WdsL:2lL JO00UBA0
Jany — Migjjes) puels)
suibag Juaag — dn uuepp pawi) WVEE: swooljieg
Ul yose spiyly WV0E'8 suwiooljieg
dn wuepp uado INV00:8 swool|eg
uadQ s100Q WV0E:L Kqgo

BIY208g — Swooi(eg

sabuno sayoeon/sabpne | Wd00:LL —WVOE:Z | 20u0 moys swooljeg
— wooJpieog aseyn

IBALY JUSID V09 Swiooljieg SOLLSVNIAAD SAIdVY ANVED
NMOMIVIL INd6S:11-Nd00°8 g-v H3
WOOY LNONVIYYG Nd6S-11-INV00:8 4-v 0D
JONVIAIO493d Nd00-8-INV00:8 V HI NOLLLLAdNOD FONVA ANV dITHO SHO0Y LIdIdS 044 'LvS
= AaEsaaany == E ] R = oERT T S AT B

i, e b e 1 =1 L) ] (S ueT oS e

o s )

MOHS/ IONVINIOLITd Nd6S: 11-INV00:8 HdAd YINOVADLAN LITTIVE ¥D

13 SUNOH DNIMIIA INOE:S-INVOE:L ATVMAIS LIGIHX3 LIV NSAD
InQ peo uoionposd wdog:zZy ao wooljieg
Jealg weQg:0lL-wepo-0l
uolssag ajebajaqg wdog:ZL-WegL:6 ao wooljeg
INO peOT OIYSA wdpo:-wdo0:ZL 300Q
uoA1 pue uebiyoiy
uonelsibay ayebsjeqg wdog:z1-wepo:g Agqo eyooeg
elaaydley 9340y wdog:z|-wepo:L a9 £q Aqqo elyooeg
sapiwwo) wawdojaaaq Ad10d wdog:Z1-Wego: . wooipreog asey)
wooy ssaid wdpg:Z1-wego:.2 Ja)ua) ssauisng
vd [eAlY JU3ID wege9 MOHS TVANNY 0102 TTVd NvaINd Wivd IN
pu3juaAa3 WNdO00:t L HOOUBAO
Spiemy NdSL:0L Janry - Kigjen puein
su|bag Juan3g — dn uuep pawi} WdS0:9 swooljjeg
U] yosey aRIYlY Nd00:9 swiooljjeg
dn wuepp uado NdOE'S swooueg
uadQ si00Q Wd00:S swooljjeg
Apeas moyg - 31 37dNOD lieg Wd00:¥ Aqqo7

BIY203S — swooljieg

010C — ATH9M dISIATYA
HOVIFSOAREC




01/6T/11

d-v woolf[eqg = d-V T11vd
[IeH 92uBULIOMS] SOAY] = Ad
J-V SIBH 3qIyxq = -V HJ

Swo0y Sunadj\ 20IUOIN
H-V swooy Sunissjp Joo[AQ = H-V O

4=V JOO[IRAQ AN = -V Od
Baly AI9[[RD) pURID = DD
d-V swooy Suled]y AI3J[eD puelD = -V D

=d-V NON

ooo 14 mUZ<le.E.< ._.wm_ |

Su0ISSag

SMBIAIBJU| Jamol9) albBap-ini4 wy
uadQ moysg apelt)
uadQ uonelisibay

fealuy Juaiiy

—1n0 |

WV00:1 | — INV00:6

Nd00:S — INV00'8
Wd00:S — Wv00:8
Wd00:s — Wv00:8

09 ‘'4-3'4'0 '9-vo9
WO

MOYg Y lieH ¥qiyx3
O-V slieH ¥qiyx3
Kigjjes pueln

Ai3jes puelo

0dX3

LINAVIN WHVA 2 IT8V.LI0FA ‘LIN¥d STV LVIYD | £03d 'sanlL

avOT ¥FHOVITE ¥D 4O ALID ag1-Nvo0:L av-11ve SOLLSVNAD SAIdV¥ ANVYD
13 SYNOH DNIMIIA IdOE-S-INVOE L ATVMAIS LIGIHX3 13V NSAD
0081 IONVANILLY 1S3 AV MOHS/ FONVINIOAI3d Wd00-01-INd00-8 HdAQ SINVAV NVAYE/ SNOLLONAOUd J3AVId
va AINNIA INd6S-11-INV00-8 av 11vd YINNIA FNOH ANV TIOH
(Peso[d %o0p) Ul Peo 1oNqIUX3 | 00’8 — INd00:9 O-V SIleH HqIux3
u| peo” Joyqiyx3g Nd00:9 — NV00:-8 O~V slleH ¥quyx3
NEYI-YIBAN JUSND Nd00€ sjnoyealg
uado uonensibay | 008 — W00 Kisfjes pueio
u] peo uoioNpoId Wdo0:Z} @ pue D swooljjeg
1099 104 ‘99 0OdX3
d dnxoid Jno INV0€E:8 — NV00:9 £qqo1 ysiam LIMIVIN WV 2 319V.LIDTA ‘LINYd SNV LVIID 9 0dd ‘'NOW
AV MOHS/ JONVINIO1Yd Id6S-11-NV00-8 HdAQ JINOVIDLNN LI TTVE AD
13 SUNOH ONIMIIA Nd00:9-INV00-8 ATVMAIS LIGIHXT 13V N1SAD
nQ peoT Wd00:0t
spiemy WdSY'6 mEoww“mm
suibag juaag - dn uueps paw) INdSE:S
ul yorel Iy WJOE'S swioodjieg
dn uuepm uado Wd00:S Lol
spJemy WJOS ¥ oY-99
suibag juang — dn uuepp pawij INdSO:L swooljjeg
U] Yole syl 00 L swooljjleg
dn uuepp uado WJ0E:ZL swooljjeg
spiemy Wds1:zL 04-99
suibeg juaa3 — dn uueAA pawI ) WVSE:Q swooy|jeg
Ul yoiely sejuly WVo0e:8 swool|ieg
dn wuep uado WV00:8 swooileg
uadQ s100Qg WVO0E:L kqqo
e1yooag — swooljeg
sabuno sayoeossabpnr | W00 LL - WVOE:Z 80UI0 MOYS swooljieg
— wooipieog aseyd
24 [BALLY JuallD) WYO0E-9 swooJjleg SOLLSVNIWAD SAIdVY ANVID
AUy JuallD Nd00-¢ 3-9 sijeH/uonensiboy 0dX3

Ajuo uj-peo — dnjag Juawdinbg

_INd00:6 — WV00: w

0-< SIiBH Hquuxg_

oSm ?AMmmS/ aasiAgy
HIOVIFSOAHCI

_5$24d ZDw



01/62/11

-V wooljjed = g-v 11vd
[leH soueuLIoldd SOAdd = Ad
O-V S[IeH 1qyxg = D-V Hd

Swooy Sunadpy 0JUON = -V NOW
H-V swooy Sunssy Yoo[12A0 = H-V O

J-V qOOHBAQ JoARY = -V O
BAIY AIR[[ED) PUBID = DD

4-V swooy Sunsay A1d[[en puein = J-vV O

Buijes\ |eALIY 98 PUE SIOPUSA
|BALLY JUBIID

WV0E'8 ~ WVY0E:L

299

Aigjjes) pueis
ST

(01:0. €|

6 O30 ¥NHL

—1

Lo}

WV0€E:9

13 SYNOH ONIMAIA INJOE:S-INVOE: L NTVMANS LIGIHXd LIV NSAD
Janoabueyd TR R S 4-3 Aigjjes pueis)
adueUBUIBRWY suonesad) 1s9

1BW 10014 preyoIO WJ0E'S — WOt Q wooujeg
suoisseg Wd00:¥ — Nd00:2Z a pue 9 wooueg
suoissag NdO00:¥ ~ Nd00:Z 3'a-v 104
suoissag WdO00:¥ — Nd00:2 HO'43'a'D '8V
09 '4-3'0'0 'g-vO9
$1010811 JO pseog INYNoLo|4 WdOE:Z - INd0Oo:L 20W0
Moys g IIeH Hayx3
Bunesiy sapiwWOD UOIUOD 1IN | INHOS: L — ND00:ZL 0o
MOYS D (IBH Nqiux3
Janosbuey) suopesado WV00:LL an 1099
suoisseg |  NV00:L1— IWV00:6 Q pue D wooyjeg
suoisseg | WWVO00:LL — WV00:6 3'0-0 'g-v 104
suoissag | INV00:LL —IWV00:6 | HO ‘4-3'a-D 'g-vOO
‘4-3'0'0 'g-voo
SMaIUBU| JamoI9) d1BBap-unig wy Wd00:S — NV00:8 0
MOYS V |IeH Nayx3
uadQ moys apeiy Nd00:S — Wv00:8 O~V slieH ¥aux3

uadQ uonesisibay Wd00:S — NV00'8 Kisjjes pueis odx4d

o)l [BALIY JUS) Kisjjes puess LIMIVIN WYV % 3TGV.LIOFA ‘LINYd STV LVIIO 8 03d 'aam

SUoISsag

SUOISSag
uoIssag

uoIssag

SUoIsS?g

Wd00:¥ — Wd00:2

Wd00:¥ — Wd00:C
WNd00'L —INVO0E:LL

Ndogzt
—WV00:L |
WV00:L1 — WV00:6

7099 pue D wooljeg
a pue 9 wooJjleg
H-9 '4'a-0'av

09 '4-3'A‘0'av9oo
299

a wooljjieg
@ pue 5 wooleq

H-9'4'3'a-0'av

13 SUYNOH ONIMIIA INJOE:S-INVOE L MATVMAIS LIGIHX3 LAV NSAD
a|qeipunoy ey wiey INd00:Z — Wd00:9 O wooljieg
Buuayies
wsuno | -uby pue Bunaxep uuey Nd00:9 — Wd00:S HO
NoopaaQ Aigjjes) puein)
Bunesyy
[enuuy A}8100S "MOH alelS | NdO€E'S — WdOE v aoo
Bueay |enuuy DAW INJOE'S — NJOE Y 099
aseomoys AiaueA unig NJ0€E'S — NDOE Y g wooJjieg
Janoabueyn suonelsado INDOO: ¥ HO

010C — ATddM dASIATY
HIOVIFSOAHCI



01/6T/11

@-V wooljfeg = -V 11vd J-V YOOHAQ JoATY = 4-V OY
[[eH 9ouBULIOLIdd SOAST = Ad SUI00Y SUIIA S0NUOIN = J-V NOW Baly AI9[[RD puein) = DO
9 O-V SlleH #qyxd = OV HA H-V swooy 3unssj JOOHdAQ = H-V O d-V swooy Sunsa A19[[en pueld = J-v D
AAVdVvd INN1d dvOHNS NdS-INdY
AV HONVINIOJYId Wdt-INdT HdAdQ AADVIOLNN / LITTVEH AD
STVIN MTJO Wd6S-11-INV00:8 ad-v NONW
ONILIINW Wd6Ss:11-INV00:8 OHA
ONILITNW Wd6S:11-INV00:8 g Hi
ONILLIIN INd6S-11-INV00:8 V H
WOOY LNOAVIYL Wd6S:11-INV00:8 NOOYadvOod
WOOY LNOoAvIAIg INd6S-T11-INV00:8 1-v Od
WOOY LNOAvVIYd Wd6S-11-NV00:8 H-V 0D
ONILIIN Nd6S:T11-INV00:8 4-v DD
INd6S:11-INV00:8 a-v 11vd ONILIFIN FHAOTINT TVNNYV 010T S4D 11034 'LvVS
] IR - ||I|__.I.....|....||.. aF |]I|‘|.|.||‘|._..|l|ll1]||||l|.i._
FONVINIOLYT WdO0€-6-NdOt:L
MOHS TOOHOS IdOE 1-INd ST
AV MOHS TOOHOS WVSH01-IWNVO1 HdAd YPIOVIILAN / LITTVE 4D
dNn.L3as Wd6S: 11-INV00:8 d-v NOW
dNL3s Wd6S-1T-INV00:8 O H3
dNnLas Wd6S T1-INV00:8 g H3a
dNniLas Nd6S:T1-INV00:8 V H3
dNnras Wd6S-T11-INV00:8 NOOYaIvod
dNl3as Wd6S T1-INV00:8 4V Od
dNl3as Wd6S 1 1-INV00:8 H-V 0D
dNlas Wd6S T11-INV00:8 1-v DO
r dN13s Wd6S:11-INV00:8 a-v 11vd ONILLITW FFAOTING TVNNNY 0107 SI4D

0dX3
)| NMOQIVIL Nd6S:11-INV00-8 JV HI LIMAVIN AV B FTEVIFOFA ‘LINYA STAVT AREL:Y)

01 03d Tid

AV TvSIVIHTY NJOE:TI-WVO1 TIVH 1V.LIDTY ANOHJWAS SAIdVY ANV YD
TYSYVAHTY Wd6-Nd9
A4 NI JAOW WJS-NVS HdAQ ADIOVIOLAN / LITIVE 4D
19 SYNOH DNIMIIA WJOE'S-NVOE L MATVMANS LIFIHXT LYV NSAD
dnli3as 651 1-Wd00:L a-011ve
r dN.Las Nd6S:11-NV00:8 g-v 11vd ONILIIN FIAOTINT TYNNNY 010T S4D
(pabueste
Ajleroads) InO-peo sonaiyx3 | INDOO:LL - WH0O:8 -V SiteH Hqux3
INO-peo Jonqiyx3 Nd00:8 — WdOL:L O-V SlieH Iqiux3
Bunasy asL YO

Mmoys D lieH nqiyx3
suoisssg Wd00:€ —Wd00:L | H-D09'Q'0'8VO9
suoisssg WV00:1} -WV00:6 | H-D '4-3'Q ‘0 '8-VOD
‘'43'0°0 'g-vO9

smalnd| 1amoln) 3ibBap-unig wy Wd00:€ — V008 30O
MOYS V |leH NqIyx3

usdO moyg apeit NdO00:1 — NV00'8 OV siieH Naiux3

Buyse] siap) Buuuip INV00:6 — WV00:8 (v-H3) Aisjle puei

uadQ uonensibey | Wd00:ZL — WY00'8 Kigjleg puei

0107 — ATHdM dASIATY
HOVTESOAIC



01/6T/11
d-v wooljjed = g-V T1vd
[[BH 9ouBULIO}Sd SOAST = Ad
L IV slieH nquyxd = OV H3

Swooy SunsdA 20IUO = -V NOW
H-V swooy SunasjA YOO[PAQ = H-V O

d-V YOOLBAQ JoATY = J-V OY

BAIY AIS[[BD pURID = DN
J-V swooy Sunssiy A1s|jen pueln = J-V O

1N0O FIAON
JONVINIOIdAd

SALLIALLOV/HONNT
JONVINIO143d

SONVINMO4¥Ed

AV JONVINIOLIAd

JONVINHOJ¥Id |

INLLYFONOD |

Nd8-INdS
NdS-INdE

NAOE-ZNA00T1
WNdOI-Wd8
NAS-NdE _

V00-ZI-Nd00:0T
WdO1-Nd8

NdOE-6-NdOE:L

a-v NONW

HIAQ

T IVLIOAY |

HdAQ |

HdAd

S$dOd AVAI'TOH 438430 ATISIN
ANOHJWAS SAIdVd ANVID

§dOd AVAI'TOH YIFHITD FTLSIN

ANOHJNAS SAIdV¥ ANVD |

SdOd AVAITOH Y3940 T1ISAN |

ANOHJNAS SAIdVY ANVO

" $dOd AVAITOH ¥39430 ATLSAN
ANOHJNAS SAIdVY ANVYO

61 03d 'NNS

81 090 "LVS |

YINNIQ

TYSYVIHTY
AV NI HAONW

Nd6S:11-NV00:8

d0i-dL
NdS-INV00:8

ad 11vd

HdAd

SAIVMY NOLLVAONNI 1102 43843D ATLSIN

S$dOd AVAI'TOH Y3943 TTLSAN
ANOHJWAS SAIdVI ANVID

91 04d ¥NHL

100 IAON
FONVINYOAIEd
NV NI JAON

STVSIVIHIY % d.LIS |

NA6S: 11-NV00:8

~ VZI-NdOE6 |

WdO0E-6-NdOE:L
NdS-NV8

_@>11ve

HdAd

SAAVMY NOLLVAONNI 110T 3943 FTLSIN

YIOTIOYNVILS WIFHNNVIN

$1030 ‘gaM |

dn1as

-]

Wd6S-11-WV00:8

@ 1ve_

___SQIVMV NOLLVAONNI 1107 Y3830 I1LSIN

¥1 030 'SanL |

dafos IR

FONVIAROLAd

Wd0€:6-Nd0¢E L

1N0 FJAON WdI11-NdOE:L
JONVINIO4ddd WdO0¢-L-Nd0¢E S
AAVIVd NNTd 9vONSs Wd-NdE
AV JONVINAIOJY3d WdE-INd I HdAd YPAOVAILAN / LIATIVE ¥D
NMOQ dv3IlL Wd00-CI-NV00:8 JH3
NMOQ dvil Nd00-TI-NV00:8 g Hi
NMOd dvil WdO00:TI-NV00:8 V H3
NMOQ dvil Wd00:TI-NV00:8 H-V 0D
I NMOd dviL Wd00:Z1-INV00:8 a-v 1ivd

ONILIIN FIAOTINE TVINNV 010Z S40 |

21080 NOS

0102 — A'THAM dISIATA
HOVTESOAHC



01/67/11
@-v wooljieg = d-V 11ve _ 4-V YOOH3AQ JoAlY = 4-V OY
[[BH 99UBULIOMY] SOAY = AQ Swo0y SunesA S0IUO = J-V NOW galy AI9[[eD pueln) = DO
O-V SI[eH Hquyxd = D-V HI H-V swooy Sunesi Y0OIAQ = H-V O -V swooy Sunso A1s|[en pueln = J-v D

Advd LT 03d 'NOW

! | [ il o
! ! avasvsn | czoa vs
! ] | S

1NO FJAON VZI-Nd0£-6 TION 3a INOYID
JONVINIOJ YT NdOE:6-NdOE L ANOHJWAS SAIdVd ANVID £2.04d "dNHL

JONVNIOLIAd Nd0¢6-INdOE L
TVSYVIHIY NdOE:S-INdE T4ON 3d AnDAID
dNni3s INdT-NVE ANOHJWAS SAIdVI ANVID 7703d 'adm

TVSYVIHTY WdOI-INdOt L TION 3d INOYID
TVSIVIHTY Wd9-d0ot:€ TIVH TVLIDTY ANOHJWAS SAIdVY ANVYD 12044 "sanL

11 el ocosanon

0107 — ATNEIM QASIATI -
HOVIESOATC



